
 

1 

 

 

 

                   

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING   

Monday, July 25, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. 

UGRWCD Offices, 210 W. Spencer Ave, Suite B, Gunnison, CO 81230 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To be an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin. 

 

5:30 p.m.  1. Call to Order 
 

5:31 p.m.  2.       Agenda Approval 
 

5:33 p.m.  3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed  

for discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board  member or 

citizen. 

• Approval of June 27, 2022 Annual Meeting Minutes 

• Monthly Budget Review 

• Consideration of Expenses  
 

5:38 p.m.  4. Legal and Legislative Issues 

 

5:48 p.m.  5. 2023 Budget – Budget Officer Appointment (ACTION) 
 

5:50 p.m.  6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board will meet in Executive Session to discuss water issues with individual 

water rights holders. 
 

6:15 p.m.  7. BREAK 
 

6:40 p.m.  8. Basin Water Supply Report 
 

6:45 p.m.  9. General Manager and Committee Reports   

• Treasurer’s Report 

o Approval of 2021 Financial Audit (ACTION) 

• GM Miscellaneous Updates 

http://www.ugrwcd.org/


2 

• Watershed Management Planning Committee

o July 14th Meeting Summary

• Grant Program Update

• Wet Meadows Program Update

• Taylor Local User’s Group Update

o July 8th  Meeting Summary

• Scientific Endeavors

• Gunnison Basin Roundtable
• STOR Committee Update

7:45 p.m. 10. Miscellaneous Matters 

• Colorado Water Congress – additional board member interest?

• Gunnison Energy Production - Solar Panels

• Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet

• Newspapers and Other Water Articles

7:55 p.m. 11. Citizens Comments

7:58 p.m. 12. Future Meetings

8:00 p.m. 13. Summary of Meeting Action Items

8:05 p.m. 14. Adjournment

UPPER GUNNISON RIVER WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS- AGENDA 

REGULAR SEMI-ANNUAL MEETING 

8:05 p.m. 1. Call to Order 

8:07 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval 

8:10 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed for 

        discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board member or citizen. 

• Approval of January 24, 2022 Minutes

• Consideration of Expenses

• Budget Report

8:15 p.m. 4. Meridian Lake Reservoir Update 

8:25 p.m. 5. Miscellaneous Matters 

8:30 p.m. 6. Citizen Comments 

8:35 p.m. 7. Adjournment 

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  

All times are approximate.  Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are recorded, and action 

can be taken on any item. The Board may address individual agenda items at any time or in any order to 

accommodate the needs of the Board and the audience. Persons with special needs due to a disability are 

requested to call the District at (970) 641-6065 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   



AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items



1 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Annual Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 

Monday, June 27, 2022 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) 

conducted its annual meeting on Monday, June 27, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. in the District office, 210 West 

Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO, 81230 and via Zoom video/teleconferencing. 

Board members present: Sara Bergstrom (via Zoom), Rosemary Carroll, Joellen Fonken, Rebie Hazard, 

Stacy McPhail, Julie Nania, Bill Nesbitt, John Perusek, Don Sabrowski (via Zoom), and Andy Spann.   

Board members absent:  Michelle Pierce 

Others present: 

Ashley Burgemeister, Gunnison County Court Judge  

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

Cheryl Cwelich, UGRWCD Watershed Program Coordinator 

Tyler King, United States Geological Survey (USGS) 

Jesse Kruthaupt, Trout Unlimited 

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel 

Luke Mecklenburg, Colorado Attorney General’s Office 

Katherine Nettles, Crested Butte News 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

Sue Uerling, UGRWCD Admin. Asst./Communications Support Specialist 

Katie Walton-Day, USGS 

1. Call to Order

Board Vice President Stacy McPhail called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

2. Agenda Approval

Vice President McPhail announced one addition to the agenda:  1.  A presentation by Jonathan Houck, 

Gunnison County Board of Commissioner    

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Joellen Fonken seconded approval of the agenda as 

amended.  The motion carried. 

3. Administration of Oath of Office



2 

Ashley Burgemeister, Gunnison County Court Judge, administered the oath of office for Board members 

Sara Bergstrom, Stacy McPhail, John Perusek and Andy Spann, all of whom submitted applications to 

renew their Board terms.  

4. Consent Agenda Items

With respect to the May 24, 2022 minutes, Director Julie Nania asked that they be corrected under the 

paragraph about Mt. Emmons Mining Company to say “Although the Keystone Mine has completed 

improvements and fulfilled some of its required reclamation work, they still retain an issue with 

cadmium at the site.” Director Bill Nesbitt asked that in paragraph 7, under the Treasurer’s report, the 

names and spellings of Jim Lebenthal with Cerity Partners and Jamie Dimon with JP Morgan Chase be 

corrected (as shown here).  Director Rebie Hazard also requested a correction to the May 24, 2022 

minutes to note that she was not present at the meeting via Zoom, as the minutes state.  In addition, 

Director Hazard asked that the Budget be pulled from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. 

Director Rebie Hazard moved and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the consent agenda 

items with corrections to the minutes as noted and the budget pulled from the consent agenda for 

further questions.  The motion carried. 

Director Hazard asked if the Employee Insurance line item included the cost of Cheryl’s insurance.  

General Manager Sonja Chavez confirmed that it did.  Director Hazard also asked, with respect to the 

line item for “Internship,” why it was over budget.  General Manager Chavez said it was because three 

interns were not originally contemplated when the 2022 budget was being developed and intern John 

Murphy worked more hours than were initially allotted in the budget. Alex and Aaron Baca have also 

been fulfilling internship duties after John Murphy graduated from Western and ended his internship.   

Director John Perusek moved and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the budget report as 

presented in the Board packet. 

5. Election of Officers

The current officers of the UGRWCD are: President Michelle Pierce; Vice President  

Stacy McPhail; Secretary John Perusek; and Treasurer Bill Nesbitt. Vice President McPhail asked for 

nominations from the floor.  None were offered.  All current officers agreed to continue to serve in their 

present roles for the 2022-2023 fiscal year. Director Pierce provided her agreement to continue to serve 

as President to General Manager Chavez via telephone prior to the meeting. 

Director Julia Nania moved and Director Rosemary Carroll seconded approval of the current 

slate of officers for 2022-2023 with gratitude.  The motion carried. 



3 

6. Consideration of Resolution Appointing Financial Officers

Resolution 2022-02 was included in the Board Packet. Vice President Stacy McPhail asked if there were 

any questions.  Treasurer Bill Nesbitt requested that paragraph 7 of the resolution designating NuVista 

Federal Credit Union of Gunnison, Colorado as a depository of the District, be removed from the 

document as this is not an allowed depository option for the District. 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Andy Spann seconded the adoption of Resolution 2022-

02 appointing the financial officers for the District with the removal of paragraph 7 from the 

resolution.  The motion carried. 

7. Re-authorization of Standing Committees

A copy of the current committees and members of each committee was distributed in the Board Packet.  

Vice President McPhail asked if there were any changes or additions to committees and/or committee 

members. Director Bill Nesbitt asked to step down as chair of the Education and Outreach Committee. 

Director Sara Bergstrom agreed to take over the role of chair of the Education and Outreach Committee. 

Both were thanked for their commitment. General Manager Chavez said she would like to convene the 

Finance Committee as a sounding board for preliminary budget discussions as she noted that during the 

regular meetings, there is not always time to dig more deeply into some of the line items.  The Board 

expressed their agreement with this idea.  

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Sara Bergstrom seconded approval of the re-

authorization of Board committees and committee members for 2022-2023 with the changes noted 

above.  The motion carried. 

8. Legal and Legislative Matters

General Counsel John McClow updated the Board of the Bureau of Reclamation’s recent announcement 

that the states that are parties to the Colorado River Compact need to provide a plan in the next 60 days 

for how they will reduce their consumptive use by two to four million acre-feet of water within 18 

months.  If the states do not come up with a plan, then the Bureau of Reclamation has the authority to 

step in and unilaterally make cuts to protect the system.  John provided a graph titled “Basin Depletion 

Trends 2019-2021” which shows the disparity of use between the two divisions and that from 2019 to 

2020 the Upper Division states reduced their consumptive use by one million acre-feet while the Lower 

Division states increased their consumptive use.  John said due to this disparity, it is therefore 



 

4 

 

Colorado’s understanding that the Lower Division will need to meet the majority of the shortfall.  John 

said that since the last demand study was conducted in 2016, which was riddled with errors and 

exaggerations, the Upper Division states have come up with a unified plan on the methodology of 

calculating consumptive use.  In that time, the Upper Colorado River Commission has also funded and 

implemented new testing and equipment to monitor the consumptive use on the ground, so the Upper 

Division will have accurate information.  John will get an update tomorrow at 7 a.m. from the 

Commissioner on the interstate negotiations that have taken place over the last two weeks and if there is 

anything earth shattering that has come out of those negotiations, John will report this to the Board.  

 

The Bureau of Reclamation is conducting webinars explaining the shortfalls and the process going 

forward to deal with them which are open to the public on July 12th and July 14th at 10 a.m.  John said he 

would provide the links to the webinars to anyone interested. Director McPhail asked if there was any 

word from the Lower Basin states on their ability to address this? John said that Las Vegas thinks it has 

all the answers, Arizona thinks they are a victim and not getting their fair share and California thinks 

that since they have senior rights, they are just at the table as a courtesy. John explained that the Central 

Arizona Project has the most junior rights among the lower basin states and therefore suffers the greatest 

reduction. About half of their allocation goes to the Native American tribes there who have federal 

reserved water rights.  So, Arizona is concerned about their ag producers being completely cut off. John 

explained that in the Lower Division, no one gets any water without the approval of the Secretary of the 

Interior and should they not come up with a plan to reduce their consumptive use, she has the authority 

to shut off the water.  Director Nesbitt asked if Mexico has been part of the negotiations and John said 

that they have been. 

 

9. Presentation by Brad Piehl, Forest Hydrologist, J. W. Associates, Inc. 

 

Brad Piehl provided a Power Point presentation based on the results of the Upper Gunnison Watershed 

Wildfire Assessment, for which J. W. Associates were contracted for by the District. Brad explained that 

there were four main agenda objectives to determine for their assessment as follows: Watershed Wildfire 

Hazard Analysis and Ranking; Climate Change Vulnerability; Zones of Concern; and Opportunities and 

Constraints. From those agenda objectives, Brad said they specifically were concerned with the 

following four components with respect to Watershed Hazard Components for the Upper Gunnison 

River Basin: Wildfire Hazard; Debris Flow Hazard; Roads Hazard and Soil Erodibility Components. 

Brad proceeded to show maps of various data they collected and the vulnerability of each area.  He 

showed a slide of examples of actions that could be taken at Willow Creek to improve the conditions 

there.  Brad then took questions about the analysis and outcomes. 

 

Director Don Sabrowski asked if there had been any discussion about how to address beetle kill, 

continuing drought conditions and how to mitigate these issues in the restricted areas noted on the maps.  

Brad said that they are just trying to get going on all of the data that has been collected and that these 

issues can be addressed on a much smaller scale.  He said that roads, for example, are readily available 



 

5 

 

for treatment, but that wilderness areas are a whole other issue. He said that J. W. Associates can 

certainly identify areas of concerns that seem obvious and easiest to address.   

 

Director Stacy McPhail expressed her concern that at some point in time, all of the Taylor River Basin 

could be “red” in some metric in the future. Director Julie Nania said that it would be nice to be able to 

compare the Upper Gunnison River Basin’s results against similar studies in other basins, especially for 

grant purposes. She felt the descriptions next to each key factor shown on the maps was a very helpful 

piece and should be included in all of their analysis.  Brad said he would be cautious about trying to 

compare analysis on a statewide basis as he felt it would be comparing apples to oranges, but did say 

that he thinks our basin would “rank right up there” for wildfire hazards as compared to other areas in 

the state. Director Rosemary Carroll asked if they look at the scope of an area to manage or how much 

of the landscape you need to manage, or do you look at techniques on how to move an area from high 

vulnerability to moderate across different metrics because they are cross-correlated?  Brad said that after 

they worked both pre-fire and post-fire analysis, his recommendation is to try to tackle the areas that 

offer the least amount of constraints and he feels putting various tools together could have a pretty 

dramatic impact on reducing wildfire probability and hazardous outcomes.  Director Stacy McPhail 

noted that the purpose of this analysis was part of the Watershed Management Planning process to help 

the committee get closer to meeting their goals for watershed and wildfire protections and ultimately, 

help the Board direct policy changes locally to address the highest areas of concern.  Brad feels that the 

next step is to do a small watershed scale analysis to come up with projects that would help with perhaps 

a couple of thousand acres at a time.   

 

10. Break 

 

11. USGS Harmful Algal Blooms Presentation 

 

Tyler King of the USGS provided a Power Point presentation on “Algal Blooms, Water Quality and 

Remote Sensing at Blue Mesa Reservoir.”  Thanks in part to funding from the District and an existing 

partnership between USGS and the National Park Service, Tyler said they have (1) developed remote 

sensing methods to improve detection and monitoring of algal blooms and (2) combined this data with 

discrete water quality sampling to improve understanding of processes that lead to algal blooms. Tyler 

said that through the remote sensing, maps of chlorophyll and analysis of trends over space and time 

they can hopefully determine where and when algal blooms will occur and then through summarizing 

the physical properties and watching for trends, they can determine why algal blooms occur and what to 

do about them. Tyler noted that since there are a high level of blooms in Iola Basin, they will increase 

testing from every other week to weekly during August and September and that samples will be taken 

from shallow, medium and deep waters in the basin.  Tyler said additional water quality and temperature 

sensors will be installed at a number of locations throughout the reservoir to try to determine how algal 

blooms migrate within the reservoir.  The study also provides for additional monitoring of potential 

nutrient point sources for blooms. Tyler concluded by thanking the District for its support of $30,000 



 

6 

 

and said that they are seeking $41,000 in funding from the Colorado River District’s Community 

Funding Partnership program with additional cash match from the Uncompahgre Valley Water Users 

($2,000), Gunnison County ($2,000) and Project 7 Water Authority ($5,000). 

 

Director Nesbitt asked if there is an established migratory pattern for the blooms and does this mean 

there is a danger downstream from blooms.  Tyler answered that the blooms move dramatically in the 

snapshots that are done every five days and that they are also trying to determine if the blooms move up 

and down in the water.  He noted that toxins produced from the algae can survive in any environment 

and could be distributed in agricultural irrigation systems, which is definitely a concern.  Katie Walton-

Day, said that to date their data collection has shown that although the blooms themselves have been 

migrating, so far the toxins from the blooms have remained only in the Iola Basin.  General Manager 

Chavez did note that algal blooms can cause problems for hydroelectric plants as well. 

 

Director Carroll asked if they have a hypothesis as to why these blooms are happening more frequently 

and if they have found a correlation between temperatures and nutrient sources.  Katie answered that 

after the big snow year in 2019 when the reservoir was at full pool, although there were some blooms 

later in the summer, no toxins were found.  She said that the increase in drought conditions is definitely 

a factor as the resulting decreases in the natural amount of inflows, coupled with the emergency releases, 

has dropped the reservoir to levels not previously experienced outside of when the reservoir was 

originally filled.  She said that this has increased the warm shallow areas and vegetation, which are both 

factors in the increase of blooms and that she did not feel these could be separated out from one another. 

 

Director Fonken asked if the algae is harmful to fish, like it is for dogs.  Katie answered that she is not a 

fisheries biologist and cannot say for sure but speculated that in the thermocline at the middle water 

level where the low oxygen levels are occurring because of the blooms that perhaps the fish are already 

segregated above and below that level.  Katie suggested asking that question of Colorado Parks and 

Wildlife (CPW) and Joellen suggested they look to CPW for funding.  General Manager Chavez noted 

that CPW is already offering in-kind services to help with the data collection.  Katie thanked the District 

for their funding support saying she was not sure other local and regional entities helping with funding 

would have gotten on Board if it had not been for the District stepping-up first.    

 

12. Presentation by Gunnison County Commissioner, Jonathan Houck on the Gunnison Public 

Lands Initiative and Gunnison Outdoor Resources Protection (GORP) Act 

 

Commissioner Jonathan Houck gave a presentation about the development and history of the GORP 

(Gunnison Outdoor Resources Protection) Act and the Gunnison Public Lands Proposal as provided to 

Senator Michal Bennet. Commissioner Houck said the process began about 12 years ago and initially 

got a mixed reaction from county constituents about developing a public land proposal.  While there 

were overlapping values with public lands, there were also overlapping conflicts.  At that time, the 

process was put on hold.  Then in 2015, the process was rekindled by then Gunnison County 



 

7 

 

Commissioner Paula Swenson, as well as former Commissioner Phil Chamberland and Jonathan and it 

was determined that the county would be the best source to lead constituents through the process of 

determining priorities for all the different entities represented.  Jonathan noted that the representation 

was thorough with all groups in the county having involvement.  Early on, the group determined that 

there would be three rules that would prevail throughout the development of a proposal: (1) the proposal 

would protect ranching interests and water resources; (2) no existing uses of public lands would be 

eliminated; and (3) the proposal would not be strictly a wilderness proposal.  Jonathan said that after a 

year and a half of weekly stakeholder meetings, a draft proposal was developed in 2019.  The initial 

draft resulted in mainly two reactions: (1) there was a fair amount of support that came from developing 

this as a grassroots effort; and (2) conversely, there was the reaction that there is already enough public 

land/land use in the county. After more input and some additional tweaking, the draft plan was released 

for public comment in May 2022 and that it where the process is at this time.    

 

In the memorandum about the proposal distributed by General Manager Chavez, there were links to 

learn more about the act and initiative, as well as a map of proposed Protection Areas. 

 

Jonathan noted that there is interest from the county in also including some land areas in adjacent 

counties, including land in Saguache and Chaffee Counties.  It was noted that there has been some 

opposition to this inclusion from Saguache County in particular and Jonathan said he would be speaking 

to the Saguache County Board the next day.  Over the years they have asked to be included and then 

removed and there seems to be some uncertainty. He wanted to point out that the development group 

feels protections for wildlife and agriculture go hand in hand and that the proposal is in no way 

prioritizing recreational interests.  He said that it is primarily the increase in recreation that is putting 

pressure on public lands and the proposal is a means of keeping recreation and development in a lower 

spot of priority on public lands.  Jonathan said the proposal is not about winners and losers, but rather 

about finding a good balance where some conflicts can be rounded out.   

 

There was some discussion about how this would affect land management and Jonathan said there will 

be Prescription Management Areas designated in the proposal and that the existing land managers will 

be advised of the proposal stipulations and manage accordingly.  Director Carroll asked how often the 

management areas will be re-evaluated.  Jonathon said the proposal does not change any of the 

requirements or duration of timing of existing land management and he noted that the GORP Act is 

amendable.  

 

Director Nesbitt asked where the county sees the proposal going in the future?  Jonathan said that the 

proposal will go to Senator Bennet and then possibly become part of a bigger legislative proposal. In any 

case it must go through both the senate and the house and that by no means, is this the final package, 

said Jonathan.  Director Fonken noted that as a member of the STOR committee, although it has been a 

long, arduous process, she feels a consensus has been built and that it has been a pleasure being involved 

in the development of this proposal versus other projects she’s been involved with.  She encouraged 



 

8 

 

everyone to learn more about the proposal through the links presented and then write a letter to address 

any individual concerns they might have.   

 

Jonathon agreed saying that what he was seeking tonight was the UGRWCD Board to sign a letter of 

support for the STOR committee to move forward with the process and then he, too, is encouraging each 

group to submit letters independently to identify specific goals and concerns of their own. He pointed 

out that the District has a permanent seat on the STOR committee and that Director Fonken will be able 

to represent and monitor the interests of the District throughout the process.  

 

Director Hazard asked if this would affect your rights if you have a mining permit.  Jonathan answered 

that any existing use permit you have, such as mining, grazing, outfitting, would not be affected by the 

act.  You would retain your existing rights. Director Hazard said that Saguache County is not 100 

percent behind this proposal and as such, she does not feel she can move forward giving her support or 

approval of the letter.  

 

Director Nania said that she likes the idea of supporting this letter tonight and then coming back with a 

letter on behalf of the District outlining any concerns and recommendations we may have with respect to 

the watershed.  Director Hazard said she was caught off guard by this action item and requested that for 

important matters such as this that could even require legislative action, she would like to have seen the 

Board be given a presentation before having to make any such decisions about moving forward.  

General Counsel John McClow noted that at the last Board meeting, when Director Hazard was absent, a 

Board policy was passed that does prohibit any Board member from endorsing a position on behalf of 

the District without the District’s prior approval.  He noted that this will not happen again.  Director 

Fonken said that the members of the STOR committee all agreed that they could not proceed with a 

letter of support without each individual member getting the approval of the organization they represent 

but they hoped to get this done before the 10th hour, which is fast approaching with the deadline of July 

8th.   

 

Director Nania moved and Director Carroll seconded the authorization of Director Joellen 

Fonken to sign on to the letter of support for the GORP Act as developed by the Sustainable 

Tourism and Outdoor Recreation (STOR). Director Hazard abstained from this vote.  The motion 

carried. 

 

Director Nesbitt asked Director Fonken if she could keep the Board advised of the GORP Act 

progression through the STOR Committee and Joellen affirmed she would do so.   

 

It was recommended that there be a monthly update given at each Board meeting on STOR Committee 

proceedings and that this be added to the agenda. General Manager Chavez agreed to add this item. 

 

13. Basin Water Supply Update 



 

9 

 

 

A Basin Water Supply update was included in the Board Packet.  Water Resource Specialist Beverly 

Richards said that while recent rain events resulted in increased flows in the short term, they quickly 

went back down as moisture was absorbed into the soil.  She asked if there were questions, and none 

were raised. 

 

14. General Manager, Staff and Committee Updates   

 

Treasurer’s Report:  Board Treasurer Bill Nesbitt said the District is “doing okay” with its 

investments.  Bill said a CD at Community Banks of Colorado reached maturity and he brought a check 

in today for the proceeds.  He said the District was pushing the FDIC insurance limits at Community 

Banks anyway and that he is hoping to merge these proceeds with other sweep account funds to see if 

there might be a two-year government note to invest in that will yield in the neighborhood of four 

percent.  Treasurer Nesbitt noted that there will be another CD reaching maturity at Gunnison Savings 

and Loan in August and that, although he would like to see District funds spread amongst the local 

banks, it will come down to whether or not there are other treasury investments available that are going 

to yield a much higher rate than the one percent that most banks are paying now on shorter term CDs.  

Director Fonken asked if the District was still using LPL Financial for their investment management and 

Treasurer Nesbitt yes but that they merged with Waddell and Reed. 

 

General Manager Chavez reported that although the audit had been completed by Paul Miller, she was 

not able to have her interview with Paul, nor was Paul able to meet with Treasurer Nesbitt for a final 

review due to a scheduling conflict.  Sonja said she hoped to wrap up these pieces soon and will provide 

a copy of the audit results to the Board when available.    

 

General Manager’s Update:  General Manager Sonja Chavez referred to her update included in the 

packet.  

 

She asked if anyone had questions about her update on the Rule Making #35 Hearing of the Water 

Quality Control Commission and none were raised. 

 

Outside Grant Applications:  Sonja noted that the District will be serving as the fiscal agent for 

UCAR for additional cloud seeding along the East River. 

 

Director Nesbitt asked General Manager Chavez where the District stands with respect to funding 

available through the Forest Service for wildfire management.  Sonja noted that the funding is being 

prioritized according to population risk for now but that we will be approaching them for grants for 

Taylor Park, for example, when the cycle reaches that phase.  She said the funding will come 

through a variety of sources.  Director Nesbitt noted that the data provided earlier that evening by 

Brad Piehl should help our cause.   



 

10 

 

 

CO River District Update:  General Manager Chavez reported that CRWCD Executive Director 

Andy Mueller presented on the mounting water crisis in the West and its effects on 

agricultural producers and forest watersheds on Colorado’s Western Slope at a Senate hearing on 

June 7th.  In his presentation, he also focused on the impacts of climate change on water supplies in 

the Colorado River Basin and the federal action needed for impacted communities. Over 

the last 20 years, the flows of the Colorado River have been 20 percent below average due to 

a drought more severe than any in the last 1,200 years. Mueller also encouraged members of the 

Senate to support Colorado water in the 2023.  

 

Sonja noted that she has some concerns about the National Weather Service radar site proposed to be 

installed near Gunnison, as they are talking about using a less expensive system that provides current 

readings but does not predict what weather is coming into the area.  She will be working on trying to 

get them to elevate that issue. 

 

WMP Update – General Manager Chavez reported that she has a field day scheduled for tomorrow, 

June 28th, conducting system optimization and infrastructure assessments and that Katie Jagt and 

Michael Blazewicz will be coming out late in July for another field day. 

 

Sonja noted that with respect to a project with Cold Harbour Institute there were some legal issues 

that were not clearly spelled out in their proposal, so the District elected to only fund the planning 

phase.  

 

Grant Program Update – Sonja said that John McClow and Bev Richards have been cranking out a 

lot of contracts and they expect to get the remaining contracts out soon.  Sonja noted that they did 

have to cancel one of the grants awarded in 2021 due to the fact that the landowner died and the 

property is for sale.  She said the new owner would be invited to apply again for funding once all 

ownership issues have been settled.  

 

Wet Meadows Program Update:  Cheryl Cwelich reported that they are kicking off construction 

on 17 sites around the basin.  Director Stacy McPhail congratulated Cheryl on her success of funding 

projects.  

 

Taylor Local User’s Group Update:  The June 7th Meeting Minutes were included in the Board 

Packet.  TLUG Chair Don Sabrowski reported that TLUG was told by the Bureau of Reclamation 

that there was a 10,000 acre-feet reduction in runoff projections from May 1 to June 1 and that they 

attribute this primarily due to heavy winds and dry soil. Although there was a good amount of snow 

in the northern part of the Taylor basin, much of it was melting into the soil profile instead of 

resulting in runoff.  Don said that more than likely, TLUG will see some further reductions in the 



 

11 

 

forecast.  He’s hopeful that recent rains will slow down the reductions we’ve been seeing in the 

forecasts for inflow.  Don reported that they had an inch and a half of rain at Wilder. 

 

In order to maintain a year-end fill of 70,000 acre-feet of water, as directed by the Stipulation for an 

Average Water Year, Erik Knight of the Bureau of Reclamation suggested changing the releases for the 

remainder of this water year as follows: 

 

June 16-July 16:  275 cfs (down from 350 cfs) 

July 16-August 1: 250 cfs (down from 300 cfs) 

August 16-Sept 5: 250 cfs (down from 300 cfs) 

September 6: 225 cfs 

September 7-26: 200 cfs (down from 225 cfs) 

Sept 27:  175 cfs 

Sept 28: 150 cfs 

Sept 29: 125 cfs 

Sept 30-Oct 15 – 100 cfs (down from 175, 150, 125, 100 and 91 cfs in early October)  

Oct 16-Nov 1: 85 cfs (down from 91 cfs) 

 

These releases were unanimously agreed to by the TLUG representatives.  The next TLUG meeting will 

be held Friday, July 8th at 9:00 AM.    

 

General Manager Chavez said she hopes for a good monsoon season, but that we are right in the middle 

of the direction the season could go (wet or dry).   

 

Director Rosemary Carroll asked about the status of the Spring Creek Reservoir fill.  Don reported that 

Water Commissioner Tom Rozman said that Spring Creek Reservoir has been filling because CPW was 

not able to finish the pipe replacement project before winter last year and the current outlet can only 

release a max of about 45 cfs.  They are going to have to drain the reservoir again to expose the outlet 

pipe to finish the project so this might bump up flows a bit through the summer.  Director Fonken 

reported that all of the land around the reservoir is now open and that Spring Creek Reservoir appears to 

be about half-way full.  

 

General Manage Chavez said that for this last and future TLUG meetings, she will be providing very 

abbreviated minutes for the TLUG representatives and what is being said will not be reported verbatim.  

Director Sabrowski commended Sonja for her patience and handling of the TLUG representatives.    

 

Scientific Endeavors:  Director Rosemary Carroll said it is interesting to consider where all the snow 

has gone that was measured by the ASO flights.  Rosemary reported that a student of Ken Williams 

(Lawrence Berkley National Laboratories) will be conducting a nitrogen study at both the water 

treatment facilities for the towns of Crested Butte and Mt. Crested Butte, as well as at the Slate River for 



 

12 

 

informational purposes.  She said this is not being done to “point fingers” at anyone but to assess why 

there is a rise in nitrogen levels when in other places around the state, nitrogen levels have decreased.  

Rosemary offers that perhaps the student could give an update to the District at the conclusion and 

Director McPhail said she would like to hear that.  Rosemary said she is working on a water isotopes 

project in Coal Creek.   

 

Gunnison River Festival Update: Several members of the Board commended Director Joellen Fonken 

on a great 20th Anniversary Festival, especially since the outbreak of Covid prevented much of the staff 

from assisting as planned.  Joellen said they had a great, wonderful weekend for the festival weather 

wise with hot temperatures.  She said it was really rewarding to see spectators out again. Joellen said 

there was a spike in flows and the cfs went way up at the Whitewater Park on Saturday that prevented a 

few of the activities from taking place.  For instance, they had to take the dogs out of the water. Joellen 

said the waivers for the events showed that there were a lot of participants involved who were not from 

the area.  She estimated that the 163 participants that were recorded on waivers may be the highest 

participation they have ever had.  She said the event passed the state water ranger’s safety requirements 

with flying colors.  Her only disappointments were that there were not as many kids involved as in the 

past and the Wailers did not show up at the I Bar until after midnight as the awards for the Taylor 

Downriver Race were scheduled to happen just before their concert.  Thankfully, this was not 

technically part of the Gunnison River Festival.  A video of the GRF produced by Alex Baca was 

shown. Joellen brought visors and offered them to Board members.  

 

15. Miscellaneous Matters 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez asked Board members to contact the District if they wish to attend the 

Colorado Water Congress Conference in Steamboat Springs August 23-25.  

 

Director Julie Nania offered that there is an opportunity for a “casual partnership” to provide a water 

talk at the Public Policy Forum and she will follow-up with an email about this to the Education and 

Outreach Committee. 

 

16. Citizens Comments 

 

No comments.  

 

17. Future Meetings 

 

A list of upcoming meetings was included in the Board Packet. 

 

The Board consensus was to move the meeting date of the August meeting to Monday, August 29th at 

5:30 PM to avoid conflicting with travel to the Colorado Water Congress Summer Conference. 



 

13 

 

 

18. Summary of Meeting Action Items 

 

John McClow and Sonja Chavez will provide more details and updates about plans to reduce 

consumptive use of the Colorado River. 

 

Rosemary Carroll will check with the student conducting the nitrogen study on the Slate River/Crested 

Butte to find a time when she would be able to provide a report to the District. 

 

Board and staff members will contact Sue Uerling if they would like to register for the Colorado Water 

Congress Summer Conference. 

 

Julie Nania will send out an email to the Education and Outreach Committee about possibly 

participating in the Public Policy Forum. 

 

John McClow will provide Board members with links to join the webinars on July 12th and 14th hosted 

by the Bureau of Reclamation about the process to be followed in renegotiating the 2007 Guidelines   

  

19. Adjournment 

   

Board Vice President Stacy McPhail adjourned the Annual Meeting on June 27, 2022, at 8:58 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Stacy McPhail, Vice President 

 

 































AGENDA ITEM 4
Legal and Legislative Matters



AGENDA ITEM 5
Appointment of 2023 Budget Officer



AGENDA ITEM 6
Executive Session for Water Rights Discussion



AGENDA ITEM 7
BREAK



AGENDA ITEM 8 
Basin Water Supply Report



1 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist 

 
DATE: July 15, 2022 

 
SUBJECT: Basin Water Supply Information 
 

The information supplied as part of this memorandum is a monthly feature and includes information about 
drought conditions in the basin, reservoir storage, reservoir operations, dust on snow events, and the Upper 
Gunnison Cloudseeding Program.   
 
Drought Conditions: 
 
According to the Drought Monitor at drought.gov as of July 12, 2022, drought conditions have improved 
considerably, particularly in southern Colorado, with a total of 68% of the state in no drought conditions to 
Moderate (D1) conditions.  As shown in the map below, no parts of Colorado are showing Exceptional 
(D4) conditions and only 32% of the state are in Severe (D2) to Extreme (D3) conditions.  These changes 
to the drought monitor are likely due to considerable precipitation the state has seen since June. 
 

 

 
 

 

 



2 

Drought Conditions – Gunnison County 

Drought conditions in Gunnison County have worsened since the June report.  As of July 12, 2022, 39% of 
the county is experiencing Abnormally Dry (D0) or Moderate (D1) conditions and 61% is experiencing 
Severe (D2) drought conditions, which is an increase in the Severe category, as this was only 31% in June.  
In June 2022, 69% of Gunnison County was experiencing Moderate (D1) and 31% of the county was 
experiencing Severe (D2) drought conditions.  The difference since last month is shown in the table below.  
Unfortunately, the Drought Monitor maps by county are not reflecting the changes effective July 12 and 
therefore are not included in this report. 
 
 
Drought Conditions – Gunnison County percentage (July 12  vs. June 7) 

Date None D0 D1 D2 D3 D4 

July 5, 2022 0 3.77 35.66 60.57 0 0 
June 7, 2022 0 0 68.55 31.45 0 0 
Difference 0 +3.77 -32.89 +29.12 0 0 

 

The change in conditions could be due in part to precipitation that has occurred since the last report.  
However, the Severe drought conditions have increased though the Drought.gov website indicates that this 
is the 29th wettest June for the county and the area is .4 inches above normal for the 128-year historical 
record.  Below is the 30-day precipitation map dated July 10, 2022 where amounts ranged from 100-300% 
of normal in the county.  The readings from the District’s rain gauge since June 18 show that we have 
accumulated 1.95” of precipitation through July 7.   

 



3 

 

 

Drought Conditions – Hinsdale County  

Drought conditions in Hinsdale County have improved significantly due to recent precipitation and the 
entire county is now in the Moderate (D1) category.  At the beginning of June (7th), 100% of the county 
was experiencing Severe drought conditions.  The difference in the 30-day conditions are reflected in the 
table below. 
 
Drought Conditions – Hinsdale County percentage (July 5 vs June 7) 

Date None D0 D1 D2 D3 D4 

July 12, 2022 0 0 100 0 0 0 
June 7, 2022 0 0 0 100 0 0 
Difference 0 0 +100 -100 0 0 

 
Drought.gov indicates that this is the 10th wettest June for the county and the area is 1.69 inches above 
normal for the 128-year historical record.  Below is the 30-day precipitation map dated July 10, 2022 for 
the county where amounts ranged from 200 to more than 300% of normal.   



4 

 

 

Drought Conditions – Saguache County 

As with Hinsdale County, drought conditions in Saguache County have also improved since the June 
report.  As of July 12, 92% of the county is now in Abnormally Dry and Moderate (D1) drought 
conditions.  In the June , 100% of the county was in Severe (D2) to Extreme (D3) drought conditions, with 
nearly half of the county in Extreme (D3) conditions.  The difference in the 30-day conditions is reflected 
in the table provided below. 
 
 
Drought Conditions – Saguache County percentage (July 12 vs June 7) 

Date None D0 D1 D2 D3 D4 

July 12, 2022 0 1.29 97.05 1.66 0 0 
June 7, 2022 0 0 0 58.04 41.96 0 
Difference 0 +1.29 +97.05 -56.38 -41.96 0 

 
 
 



5 

Drought.gov indicates that this is the 16th wettest June for the county and the area is .69 inches above 
normal for the 128-year historical record.  Below is the 30-day precipitation map dated July 10, 2022 for 
the county where precipitation amounts ranged from 100-300% of normal.   
 

 

 
 
Streamflow 
 
Streamflows in the Upper Gunnison Basin continue to decline which is normal at this time of year.  
Though streamflows have been variable in the last 30 days due to precipitation events, flows remain well 
below historical averages.  This is reflected in the table provide below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

Station Name June 15 (cfs) July 14 (cfs) 
Historical 
Average  

July 14 (cfs) 
Gunnison River near Gunnison 1,530 544 1,192 
Gunnison River at Gunnison Whitewater Park 1,520 589 964 
Tomichi Creek at Sargent’s 57 47 59 
Tomichi Creek at Gunnison 87 74 158 
Taylor River at Taylor Park 278 96 163 
Taylor River blw Taylor Park 297 248 396 
Slate River abv Baxter Gulch 438 65 177 
East River blw Cement Creek 1,010 193 478 
East River at Almont 974 259 517 
Lake Fork blw Lake San Cristobal 140 71 297 
Henson Creek at Lake City 222 78 222 
Lake Fork at Gateview 330 166 447 

Reservoir Storage 

As of July 13, current reservoir storage in the entire Gunnison Basin is at 95% of full.  The reservoirs in the 
Upper Gunnison Basin, Taylor and Blue Mesa, are at 75% and 46% respectively.  The tea-cup diagram for 
the Gunnison Basin is provided below.    



7 

 

Reservoir storage for the Upper Colorado River Basin is currently at 66% of full and is broken down 
below: 

• Flaming Gorge – 76% full 
• Fontenelle – 96% full 
• Morrow Point – 95% full 
• Blue Mesa – 46% full 
• Navajo – 56% full 
• Lake Powell – 27% full 

These amounts are reflected in the tea-cup diagram provided below.   



8 

 

Aspinall Unit Operations 

This update was provided by the Bureau of Reclamation and is dated July 8, 2022.   

The unregulated inflow volume in January to Blue Mesa was 176,837 acre-feet which is 87% of 
average. The forecasts are projecting that inflow into Blue Mesa for June-August could be 229,000 acre-
feet which is 56% of unregulated inflow.  The total forecasted inflow for WY22 is projected to be a total of 
637,200 acre-feet which is 70% of average based on the historical average.  The maximum fill for the Blue 
Mesa is projected to be 391,000 acre-feet which is 47% of average. 



9 

Levels in continue to increase, as reflected in the tea-cup diagram above, and is currently at 46% of 
capacity or 384,477 acre-feet.  Levels in Blue Mesa will likely stop increasing by the middle of July and by 
the end of WY22, projections are that storage content will be approximately 281,000 acre-feet which is 
33% of capacity, a slight decrease from the previous report. 

As per the update, releases from Crystal Dam are approximately 1,450cfs.  Gunnison Tunnel diversions are 
in process and are approximately 1,030 cfs.  Flows in the Gunnison River in the Blask Canyon are 
currently being maintained at 430 cfs while the flows in the Whitewater Reach of the Gunnison are 
approximately 867 cfs.   

Taylor Park Reservoir Operations: 

The Bureau of Reclamation provided an update on Taylor Park Reservoir operations using the July 1 
forecast from the CBRFC.  This forecast indicated that there will be 77,000 acre-feet of runoff flowing into 
the reservoir which is 78% of average.   

Based upon the forecast, the BOR again provided suggested releases for Taylor Park Reservoir.  
Discussions with the Taylor Local Users Group resulted in the following preliminary operations plan.   

 

 
 



10 

Based on this proposed operations plan, the end of October storage in the reservoir is projected to be 
70,400 acre-feet which is approximately 66% of full. The TLUG members wanted to revisit the conditions 
at the end of July rather than waiting the full month between meetings. 

The next TLUG meeting is scheduled for July 25, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. 

Meridian Lake Reservoir Update: 

Sonja Chavez performed a site visit on July 13 to Meridian Lake Reservoir in order to provide an elevation 
measurement.  Based on the visit , the reservoir is currently nearly full with a slight reduction from last 
month, and the elevation is approximately 9,606.85 feet which corresponds to 425.52 storage content.  See 
the picture below of the staff gage at the reservoir. 

 

Lake San Cristobal Update: 

The current elevation (July 15) for Lake San Cristobal is 8995.25 feet which is down slightly from the June  
reading of 8,995.39.  The flows out of the reservoir are currently at 71 cfs and the current flows at the Lake 
Fork at Gateview gage are 363 cfs.  

Lake Powell Update: 
 
The current update was provided on June 15, 2022, on the Glen Canyon Dam Operations page provided by 
the Bureau of Reclamation (BOR).   

In light of the prolonged drought, low runoff conditions, and depleted storage at Lake Powell, the 
Department of the Interior implemented an action under Sections 6 and 7.D of the 2007 Interim Guidelines 
specifically reducing the Glen Canyon Dam annual releases to 7.0 million acre-feet (maf) in water year 
2022. 



11 

The forecast for water year 2022 unregulated inflow to Lake Powell, issued on June 3, 2022, by the 
Colorado Basin River Forecast Center, projects that the most probable (median) unregulated inflow volume 
this year will be 5.61 maf (58 percent of average). 

In addition to the June 2022 24-Month Study based on the Most Probable inflow scenario, and in 
accordance with the Drought Response Operational Agreement (DROA), Reclamation has conducted 
model runs in June to determine a possible range of reservoir elevations under probable most, maximum 
and minimum inflow scenarios. The probable minimum and probable maximum model runs are conducted 
simultaneously in January, April, August, and October, or when necessary to incorporate changing 
conditions. The probable minimum inflow scenario reflects a dry hydrologic condition which statistically 
would be exceeded 90 percent of the time. The most probable inflow scenario reflects a median hydrologic 
condition which statistically would be exceeded 50 percent of the time. The probable maximum inflow 
scenario reflects a wet hydrologic condition which statistically would be exceeded 10 percent of the time. 
There is approximately an 80 percent probability that a future elevation will fall inside the range of the 
minimum and maximum inflow scenarios. Additionally, there are possible inflow scenarios that would 
result in reservoir elevations falling outside the ranges indicated in these reports. 

The DROA coordination will continue until either (1) the minimum probable projected elevation remains 
above 3,525 feet for 24 months or (2) the process moves to the next step when the most probable projected 
elevation indicates Powell elevations below 3,525 feet and a Drought Response Operations Plan is 
developed. This 2022 Plan is described above and available for review 
here: https://www.usbr.gov/dcp/droa.html. 

The June forecast for water year 2022 ranges from a minimum probable of 5.04 maf (52 percent of 
average) to a maximum probable of 6.61 maf (69 percent of average) with the most probable forecast for 
water year 2022 of 5.61 maf (58 percent of average).  

Based on the current forecast of 5.61 maf unregulated inflow for water year 2022, the June 24-Month 
Study projects Lake Powell elevation will end water year 2022 near 3525.79 feet with approximately 5.98 
maf in storage (25 percent of capacity). Note that projections of elevation and storage for water year 2022 
have significant uncertainty at this point in the season. Projections of end of water year 2022 elevation 
using the minimum and maximum inflow forecast results from the June 2022 model run are 3,521.64 feet 
and 3,534.05 feet, respectively. The annual release volume from Lake Powell during water year 2022 will 
be 7.0 maf as determined under Section 6.C.1 and 7.D of the Interim Guidelines as determined by the 
Department of the Interior. 

 
 

Do your Rain Dance! 

https://www.usbr.gov/dcp/finaldocs.html
https://www.usbr.gov/dcp/droa.html.
https://www.usbr.gov/uc/water/crsp/studies/24Month_06.pdf
https://www.usbr.gov/uc/water/crsp/studies/24Month_06.pdf


AGENDA ITEM 9
Treasurer’s Report







































































AGENDA ITEM 9
General Manager and Committee Updates



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   UGRWCD Board of Directors  

FROM:  Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

DATE:  July 19, 2022  

SUBJECT:  General Manager, Committee, and Staff Updates 

 

I. Treasurer’s Report (Director Nesbitt) 

 

II. General Manager’s Report 

 

A. Miscellaneous Updates 

 

1. Gap Weather Radar Data 

The General Manager is concerned about the long-term acquisition of gap weather radar 

data across the west. The District was successful in lobbying for a Congressionally 

Directed Spending (CDS) request for $2M dollars in 2021 in support of the purchase of 

gap weather radar data in the west via the National Mesonet Program (NMP), but to date 

there has been no permanent increase in NMP funding for purchase of gap weather radar 

data in the western United States.  According to the Undersecretary of the National 

Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) and NOAA Administrator, “Of the 

$22.2M appropriated for NMP in 2021, after data management, quality control, and 

program administrative costs, $18.8M was used to purchase data. Approximately $3.5M 

went to Western States, proportionate to those states representing states representing 

twenty percent of the total.” 

 

It is the position of the General Manager that directing only 20 percent of the federal 

budget on weather radar data in the west is not acceptable. There are many gaps in 

weather data coverage across the west as portrayed in the attached maps. The maps 

represent both radar sites and CoAgMet sites and to be clear, the CoAgMet sites do not 

provide weather forecasting data, they provide data in support of calculating evapo-

transpiration (ET) rates.  

 

The seven Colorado River Basin states are experiencing unprecedented drought and need 

adequate forecasting tools to help us manage our water supplies. It is the recommendation 

of the General Manager to the Board that she work to bring this matter to the attention of 

congress in collaboration with other western states including but not limited to Wyoming, 

Idaho, and Utah and especially Colorado River Basin States.  The first step should 

include the District drafting a joint letter to key members of Congress in collaboration 



with the Colorado River District as was done in 2021 for the CDS request and outreach to 

other basin states. 

 

ACTION: The General Manager would appreciate the opportunity to have further 

discussion with the Board on this matter. 

 

2. Colorado River District Updates 

The General Manager will update provide the Board with a verbal update on several 

Colorado River District discussion items including: 

• Update on Interstate Issues on the Colorado River 

• Discussion with Colorado State Engineer, Kevin Rein, Regarding Potential 

Compact Curtailment Administration and Rules. 

• Discussion with the Executive Director of the Upper Colorado River 

Commissioner, Chuck Cullom, Regarding UCRC Roles and Solutions. 

• Discussion with the United States Bureau of Reclamation, Upper Colorado 

Regional Director, Wayne Pullan, Regarding Commissioner’s Call for 

Conservation. 

 

3. Harmful Algal Bloom Study 

Staff continues to work with the United States Geological Survey (USGS) on development 

of a grant proposal to the Community Funding Partnership Program in support of the 

Harmful Algal Blooms (HABs) study on Blue Mesa Reservoir.  We anticipate submittal 

by the end of the month. 

 

The General Manager also assisted with water-quality data collection on July 15 at Iola 

Basin, Cebolla, and Sapinero reservoir sites. 

 

4. Gunnison County Flood Plain Mapping Update 

FEMA has updated the flood plain mapping for Gunnison and Hinsdale Counties. The new 

mapping shows significant changes as more detailed assessments and improvements in 

technology since the 90’s. 

 

5. Town of Crested Butte Source Water Protection Planning 

Staff facilitated a preliminary meeting between Colorado Rural Water Association 

(CRWA) and the Town of Crested Butte.  The District anticipates a preliminary field visit 

from CRWA staff in August and we hope to be able to start planning in the fall. 

  

B. Watershed Management Planning (WMP) Update (GM Chavez) 

Watershed & Wildfire Risk Assessment: Staff continues to move the watershed and 

wildfire risk assessment protection planning forward.  We anticipate sending a draft final 

report to the WMP Committee for review, discussion, and revisions.  The next committee 

meeting will focus on drilling down to needed next steps in the assessment process. 



Geo-Fluvial Assessments: Our consultant (Watershed Science & Design) is continuing their 

summer field assessments and has been providing technical input on various projects within 

the basin including grant program projects.  Consultant was in the field the week of July 18-

22. 

Agricultural Assessments: Field work continues. We anticipate completing approximately 

fifteen to twenty assessments this season.  Our consultant also continues to assist with 

development of preliminary engineering and cost estimation on high priority projects as a 

service to our constituents. In all, we have experienced over a 95% success rate in assessed 

projects moving to construction.  In addition, interim and final engineering inspections on 

more complicated projects has been very beneficial to staff. 

C. Grant Program (Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist) 

See Memorandum from Beverly Richards. 

 

D. Wet Meadows Update (Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator) 

    See Wet Meadows Program Memorandum. 

 

E. Taylor Local Users Group (Director Sabrowski) 

Verbal Update will be given by Director Sabrowski (TLUG Chair). Draft meeting minutes 

attached as Exhibit A. 

 

F. Scientific Endeavors Update (Director Carroll) 

 

G. STOR Committee Update (Director Fonken) 

 

 

 

 





.o
 

•
•
•
 

•
 

"'
 

.
..
 

•
 •
 

•
 

• 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

. . 

•
.. 

. .. 

•
 ...
 

•
 

•
 

•
 

·
.. 
..

• •
 

. . .. 

·,
.

, .
•
 • 

•
 • .. I ,

 •
 

. 
·-

/
 -

I
 

·,
I

. . 

•
 

•
 

I
 

..

•
 

•
 

•
 

• 

•
 

,
 

...
.

 --.-

"'
 

•
 

'
 
. 

•
 

•
 

A
·
 
•

I \
 

,· 

•



 

 

 

MINUTES 
Taylor Local Users Group 

July 8, 2022 
 
TLUG Attendees: 
     TLUG Representatives: 

Don Sabrowski (Chair) 
Roark Kiklevich (Wade Fishing) 
Mark Schumacher (Whitewater) 
Ernie Cockrell (Taylor Placer) 
Ryan Birdsey (Flatwater Recreation; by Zoom) 
ABSENT – Pete Dunda (Property Owners) and Andy Spann (Agricultural) 

 
      Others in person: 

Doug Forshagen – Crystal Creek Homeowner’s Association 
Dustin Brown – Scenic River Rafting 
Bill Gallenbeck – Taylor Dam Outlet Operations 
Sue Uerling – UGRWCD 

 
     By Zoom: 

Sonja Chavez – UGRWCD 
Erik Knight - BOR 
Raquel Flinker – Colorado River District 
Ryan Christianson – BOR 
John Bocchino – Riffle and Rise 

 
 
Erik Knight presented the July 1 CBRFC forecasted inflow which was 73,000 AF. 
 
Sonja relayed information from Dave Gochis WRF Hydro Model forecast which was 78,000 AF. 
 
Question around WRF Hydro forecast being at 78,000 AF which is 5,000 AF above Reclamation forecast 
of 73,000 AF and whether we could possibly see this additional amount in July. 

- Erik response was that he would be surprised if we can generate an additional 5,000 AF in July. 
 
Flow Recommendation Discussions: 
 
Ernie Cockrell: End of year storage content is a big part of stipulation. He wonders if we could go below 
the end of year target storage content by 1500 AF to 68,050 in order to provide some additional flows 
through August. According to his calculations, this is the difference between not having the 5-day 
flushing flow (which was very beneficial) and having the flush (300 cfs dry year – 445 cfs for five days = 
1500 AF).  Allows us to take a little more water for the benefit of the rafting community and he’d be o.k. 
with a slightly lower winter flow (84 cfs versus 85 cfs). 
 



Mark Schumacher asked for 250 cfs through August 15.  If we did this, Erik indicated that our October 31 
end of year storage content would be 69,000 AF. This would require a winter flow of 84 cfs. 

Ryan Birdsey agreed we need to keep tabs on the changing forecast and glad people are willing to work 
with each other. Thought it would be good to look at starting to slowly reduce flows through late August 
and September.  

Group agreed that it would be necessary to meet again after the July 15th forecast is released because of 
how much we’ve seen the forecast fall below expectations. 

Citizen Comments: Doug Forshagen’s concern was to keep winter flows as high as possible for benefit of 
fishery. 

FINAL RELEASE RECOMMENDATIONS: 
- Reduce flows immediately to 250 cfs and maintain until our July 25th meeting.
- The hope is to extend the 250 cfs release through August 15th for the boaters but this decision

will depend upon the forecast we receive at our July 25th meeting.

Gage below Taylor has been reading between 275 and 285 cfs at the outlet for the past week or so.  Not 
sure what’s going on. Post Meeting Note: Erik called USGS and they said that this is somewhat typically 
at the current flow release and didn’t think that they would correct, but they will send a technician out 
to check.  

Erik suggested that Dan Brauch (CPW) be prepared to talk about how a potential 100 cfs flow release 
might impact the fishery beginning in September. 

Spring Creek Reservoir Update: Dan Brauch indicated that they had to wait for storage to drop back 
down below sensor (when it does the storage is 10 feet of storage) so now talking to contractor about 
when they can get in to replace gate on outlet structure.  Likely to be August before they get in but 
certainly plan to finish this summer.  Likely not going to do much storage recovery until 2023 runoff.  
There is a bubbler in place to measure storage in Spring Creek. 

UGRWCD Post Meeting Note: Will need to consult with Four Parties on the proposal to go below the 
October 31, end of year storage objective. 

Next meeting date set for: July 25th at 9am. 

Meeting adjourned at:  10:40am



October November December January February March April May June July August September
October  4,500            4,400            3,600           

Mid October 4,600            4,000            3,600           
November  4,900            3,900            3,500            3,200           

Mid November 4,900            4,100            3,600            3,300           
December  4,900            4,300            3,600            3,400            2,800           

Mid December 4,900            4,300            3,600            3,400            2,800            Most % of Avg Min % of Avg Max % of Avg AVG
January  4,900            4,300            4,500            3,400            3,100            3,500            98,000     104% 74,000     79% 152,000   162% 94,000     

Mid January 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,100            3,500            105,000   112% 85,000     90% 160,000   170% 94,000     
February  4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,200            3,500            7,000            100,000   106% 79,000     84% 146,000   155% 94,000     

Mid February 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,400            3,500            7,000            27,000         42,000         17,000         93,000     99% 77,000     82% 137,000   146% 94,000     
March  4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            3,800            7,000            28,000         43,000         18,000         96,000     102% 79,000     84% 116,000   123% 94,000     

Mid March 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            3,900            7,000            30,000         46,000         17,000         100,000   106% 82,000     87% 120,000   128% 94,000     
April  4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,500            30,000         42,000         16,500         96,000     102% 79,000     84% 120,000   128% 94,000     

Mid April 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,200            25,000         41,000         16,800         90,000     96% 79,000     84% 115,000   122% 94,000     
May  4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         40,000         15,100         90,000     96% 79,000     84% 107,000   114% 94,000     

Mid May 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            32,000         34,000         13,000         87,000     93% 77,000     82% 105,000   112% 94,000     
June  4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         33,000         12,200         80,000     85% 73,000     78% 93,000      99% 94,000     

Mid June 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         31,000         11,200         8,000            77,000     82% 72,000     77% 83,000      88% 94,000     
July  4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         25,800         12,200         7,500            5,500            73,000     78% 72,000     77% 77,000      82% 94,000     

Mid July 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         25,800         0% 0% 0% 94,000     
August  4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         25,800         0%

Mid August 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         25,800        
September  4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         25,800        

Mid September 4,900            4,300            4,500            4,000            3,500            4,100            7,900            27,000         25,800        

WY2022 CBRFC ‐ Taylor Park Reservoir Most, Max and Min Inflow Forecasts (acre‐feet)
CBRFC Forecast 

Issued
Monthly Inflow Volume Forecast (Acre‐Feet)

April ‐ July Forecasts

 ‐

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

 100,000

 120,000

 140,000

 160,000

 180,000

January Mid January February Mid February March Mid March April Mid April May Mid May June Mid June July Mid July

Fo
re
ca
st
ed

 A
pr
il 
‐J
ul
y 
In
flo

w
 V
ol
um

e 
(a
cr
e‐
fe
et
)

Official CBRFC Bi‐Monthly Forecast

Forecasted April ‐ July Inflow Volumes

Minimum Probable Most Probable Maximum Probable 30‐yr Average



30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

55000

60000

65000

70000

75000

80000

85000

90000

95000

100000

105000

110000

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

Ap
r‐
01

Ap
r‐
08

Ap
r‐
15

Ap
r‐
22

Ap
r‐
29

M
ay
‐0
6

M
ay
‐1
3

M
ay
‐2
0

M
ay
‐2
7

Ju
n‐
03

Ju
n‐
10

Ju
n‐
17

Ju
n‐
24

Ju
l‐0

1

Ju
l‐0

8

Ju
l‐1

5

Ju
l‐2

2

Ju
l‐2

9

Au
g‐
05

Au
g‐
12

Au
g‐
19

Au
g‐
26

Se
p‐
02

Se
p‐
09

Se
p‐
16

Se
p‐
23

Se
p‐
30

O
ct
‐0
7

O
ct
‐1
4

O
ct
‐2
1

O
ct
‐2
8

Co
nt
en

t (
AF

)

Re
le
as
e 
(c
fs
)

Taylor Park Operations

Inflow Release Content

81214 AF

9316.79 Ft

Max Fill

FULL RESERVOIR



30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

55000

60000

65000

70000

75000

80000

85000

90000

95000

100000

105000

110000

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

1500

1600

Ap
r‐
01

Ap
r‐
08

Ap
r‐
15

Ap
r‐
22

Ap
r‐
29

M
ay
‐0
6

M
ay
‐1
3

M
ay
‐2
0

M
ay
‐2
7

Ju
n‐
03

Ju
n‐
10

Ju
n‐
17

Ju
n‐
24

Ju
l‐0

1

Ju
l‐0

8

Ju
l‐1

5

Ju
l‐2

2

Ju
l‐2

9

Au
g‐
05

Au
g‐
12

Au
g‐
19

Au
g‐
26

Se
p‐
02

Se
p‐
09

Se
p‐
16

Se
p‐
23

Se
p‐
30

O
ct
‐0
7

O
ct
‐1
4

O
ct
‐2
1

O
ct
‐2
8

Co
nt
en

t (
AF

)

Re
le
as
e 
(c
fs
)

Taylor Park Operations

Inflow Release ‐ June 1 Release ‐ July 1 Storage ‐ June 1 Storage ‐ July 1

FULL RESERVOIR



Proposed Operation 
Taylor Park Reservoir

July 1st forecast = 78% (73,000) af
July 7, 2022

Average Average EOM EOM
Inflow Inflow Outflow Outflow Content Elevation

Month ac-ft cfs ac-ft cfs ac-ft ft

58,892
Nov 1-15 2,320 78 2,230 75 58,982 9302.74
Nov 16-30 2,000 67 2,240 75 58,742 9302.57

Dec 1-15 1,930 65 2,210 74 58,462 9302.38
Dec 16-31 2,590 82 2,350 74 58,702 9302.55

Jan 1-15 1,920 65 2,020 68 58,602 9302.48
Jan 16-31 1,930 61 2,200 69 58,332 9302.29

Feb 1-15 1,600 58 1,940 70 57,992 9302.05
Feb 16-28 1,700 61 1,940 70 57,752 9301.87

Mar 1-15 1,830 62 2,050 69 57,532 9301.71
Mar 16-31 1,990 63 2,210 70 57,312 9301.56

Apr 1-15 2,440 82 2,160 73 57,592 9301.76
Apr 16-30 5,390 181 3,750 126 59,232 9302.91

May 1-15 10,110 340 4,140 139 65,202 9306.97
May 16-31 16,830 530 7,990 252 74,042 9312.56

Jun 1-15 15,760 530 10,810 363 78,992 9315.51
Jun 16-30 10,050 338 8,160 274 80,882 9316.60

Jul 1-15 7,960 268 7,790 262 81,052 9316.70
Jul 16-31 4,470 141 7,490 236 78,032 9314.95

Aug 1-15 4,350 146 6,690 225 75,692 9313.56
Aug 16-31 3,350 106 6,690 211 72,352 9311.53

Sep 1-15 2,480 83 4,660 157 70,172 9310.18
Sep 16-30 3,020 102 2,980 100 70,212 9310.20

Oct 1-15 2,890 97 2,980 100 70,122 9310.15
Oct 16-31 2,810 89 2,700 85 70,232 9310.21

73,010  = April-July inflow
78%  of normal

81,214  = Maximum Content

preliminary



June 1 1-Jul
Apr-16 125 125

May-01 140 140
May-16 200 200
May-17 250 250
Jun-01 350 350
Jun-02 445 445
Jun-07 400 400
Jun-08 350 350
Jun-09 300 300
Jun-16 275 275
Jul-01 275 275
Jul-08 250
Jul-16 275 250
Jul-23 225

Aug-01 250 225
Aug-16 250 225
Aug-23 200
Sep-01 250 200

Sep-06 225 200
Sep-07 200 200
Sep-08 175
Sep-09 150
Sep-10 125
Sep-11 100
Sep-16 200 100
Sep-27 175
Sep-28 150
Sep-29 125
Sep-30 100
Oct-01
Oct-02
Oct-03
Oct-04
Oct-16 85 85
Nov-01 85 85

Max Fill 85,850 80,950

Oct-31 70,000 70,400

RELEASE CHANGES



OCT 2020 4,390             69% 5,390              88 47% 68,392             99% 9309.05

NOV 2020 4,140             85% 4,940              83 76% 67,453             102% 9308.45

DEC 2020 3,940             87% 5,040              82 92% 66,353             99% 9307.72

JAN 2021 3,740             86% 5,030              82 102% 65,063             98% 9306.88

FEB 2021 3,470             92% 4,830              87 109% 63,703             97% 9305.97

MAR 2021 3,830             87% 5,460              89 84% 62,073             98% 9304.88

APR 2021 6,810             81% 5,260              88 52% 63,623             101% 9305.92

MAY 2021 16,070           60% 9,600              156 68% 70,093             91% 9310.13

JUN 2021 23,630           57% 15,820            266 79% 77,903             76% 9314.87

JUL 2021 10,960           56% 16,450            268 70% 72,413             75% 9311.57

AUG 2021 6,890             70% 15,050            245 79% 64,253             76% 9306.35

SEP 2021 3,880             56% 9,550              160 55% 58,583             82% 9302.46

OCT 2021 4,570             71% 4,620              75 40% 58,892             85% 9302.69

TOTALS 91,930           65% 101,650          140 71%

Apr-Jul 57,470           60% 47,130            70%

WY 2022

NOV 2021 4,320             89% 4,470              75 69% 58,742             89% 9302.57

DEC 2021 4,520             100% 4,560              74 83% 58,702             88% 9302.55

JAN 2022 3,850             89% 4,220              69 86% 58,332             88% 9302.29

FEB 2022 3,300             87% 3,880              70 88% 57,752             88% 9301.87

MAR 2022 3,820             87% 4,260              69 65% 57,312             90% 9301.56

APR 2022 7,830             93% 5,910              99 59% 59,232             94% 9302.91

MAY 2022 26,940           100% 12,130            197 86% 74,042             96% 9312.56

JUN 2022 25,810           63% 18,970            319 95% 80,882             79% 9316.60

JUL 2022 12,430           63% 15,280            249 65% 78,032             80% 9314.95

AUG 2022 7,700             78% 13,380            218 70% 72,352             85% 9311.53

SEP 2022 5,500             79% 7,640              128 44% 70,212             98% 9310.20

OCT 2022 5,700             89% 5,680              92 50% 70,232             102% 9310.21

TOTALS 111,720         79% 100,380          139 70%

Apr-Jul 73,010           76% 52,290            77%

WY 2023

NOV 2022 4,500             93% 5,100              85                    78% 69,600             105% 9309.82

DEC 2022 4,100             91% 5,200              85                    95% 68,500             103% 9309.12

JAN 2023 4,400             101% 5,200              85                    106% 67,700             102% 9308.61

FEB 2023 3,800             100% 4,700              85                    106% 66,800             102% 9308.03

MAR 2023 4,400             101% 5,200              85                    80% 66,000             104% 9307.50

APR 2023 8,400             100% 10,400            175 103% 64,000             101% 9306.18

MAY 2023 27,000           101% 13,000            211 92% 78,000             101% 9314.93

JUN 2023 42,000           102% 17,500            294 87% 102,500           100% 9328.15

JUL 2023 20,000           102% 23,500            382 101% 99,000             102% 9326.38

AUG 2023 10,000           102% 22,000            358 116% 87,000             102% 9320.03

SEP 2023 7,000             100% 18,000            302 104% 76,000             106% 9313.74

OCT 2023 6,500             102% 12,500            203 109% 70,000             101% 9310.07

NOV 2023 5,000             103% 5,050              85 78% 69,950             106% 9310.04

DEC 2023 4,500             100% 5,250              85 96% 69,200             104% 9309.56

TOTALS 142,100         101% 142,300          197 99%

Apr-Jul 97,400           101% 64,400            95%

TAYLOR PARK RESERVOIR - WY2022 - ANNUAL OPERATING PLAN MONTHLY SUMMARY
MOST PROBABLE INFLOW

Timestep 
(Month)

Inflow 
Volume (Acre-

Ft)

% of 
Average 

Inflow

Reservoir 
Release 

Volume (Acre-
Ft)

Average 
Monthly 

Reservoir 
Release 
(CFS)

% of Average 
Reservoir 
Release

End of Month 
Reservoir Live 
Storage (Acre-

Ft)

% of 
Average 

Live 
Storage

End of 
Month 

Reservoir 
Elevation



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

1100

1200

1300

1400

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

In
flo

w
 (c
fs
)
Taylor Park Inflows

% Exceedence ‐ Historical Inflows

10% 25% 50% 75% 90% 2022 Forecast Inflows



1 
 

220714 Summary WMP Committee_final 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM:  Watershed Management Planning Committee 
 
DATE:  July 14, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Watershed Management Planning Committee Meeting Summary 

 
A meeting of the committee was held on July 14, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. 
 
Stacy McPhail, Sara Bergstrom, Julie Nania, Brad Piehl, Jesse Kruthaupt, Nancy Johnston, Ryan 
Unterreiner,  Sonja Chavez, Beverly Richards, Cheryl Cwelich, Jill Steele, and Sue Uerling were in 
attendance.  
 
Agenda topics included updates on the watershed/wildfire assessment, recreation improvements at the 
Gunnison White Water Park, and CWCB WMP purchase order status.    
 
As a result of these discussions the following action and discussion items were identified: 
 
Action and Discussion Items 
 

• Cheryl Cwelich will continue to provide updates on the  Gunnison White Water Park 
Improvements. 

• Sonja Chavez will continue to work on the development of the third purchase order from CWCB 
for the watershed management planning process. 

• Brad Piehl will provide the draft report by July 20th.  This will be distributed to the WMP 
Committee for review and input on next steps and focus areas. 

• Staff  and committee members will meet to discuss input on wildfire assessment report. 
• Staff will continue to provide updates on assessment ongoing in the basin. 

 
 
Next Meeting 
 
Watershed Management Planning Committee – August 10, 2022  – 1:30 p.m.   
 
Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  UGRWCD Board of Directors  

FROM: Bev Richards, Water Resource Specialist 

DATE: July 19, 2022  

SUBJECT: Grant Committee Update 
 

Following is an update on the 2021/2022 Grant Program to date: 
 

• 2022 Contracts: Completed – 8; In progress – 4; Not started - 2 
• 2021 Contracts: Open – 6; Closed – 10.  
• The District canceled one 2021 contract due to sale of the property and uncertainty with 

regard to the new owners interest in the project.  Staff recommended to the applicant 
that they come back in a future grant cycle.  The amount canceled was $9,600. 

 It is the recommendation from staff that these funds be used to complete the Strand Ditch Bridge 
project. 

In summary: 

• Total 2021 Grant Budget is $204,130 
• Total Expended to Date is $111,527 
• Balance Remaining is $92,603 (includes $9,600 for canceled project) 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: Approve the expenditure of $9,600 of available 
2021 Grant Program Funds in support of the Strand Ditch Project. 

 



 

1 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_07.12.22 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  UGRWCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator 

DATE: July 18, 2022  

SUBJECT: Wet Meadows Program Update (July) 

 
During the month of July, the following activities have commenced or been completed in the 

Gunnison Basin Wet Meadows & Riparian Restoration Collaborative (GBWMRRC): 

 

Notable Activities Completed or in Progress  

 

• Construction:  

o Contracted with Pinnacle Construction for $30,714 to perform rock hauling, 

staging and sub-staging; as well as conducting earthwork on Bureau of Land 

Management (BLM) property. 

o In negotiations with Grizzly Fence for ~$15,000 to construct drift fences on 

Bureau of Land Management (BLM), Colorado Parks & Wildlife (CPW) and Ute 

Mountain Ute properties to push livestock and wildlife trails up out of delicate 

wet meadow and riparian areas. Trailing contributes to flow concentration, 

channel formation and incision that degrades water attenuation in wet meadows.   

o CPW conservation crew completed hand-built structure work at Dry Creek, Cerro 

Summit and Bohr Flats.  

• Funding:  

o Final grant award announcements on Congressional Directed Spending (CDS) to 

be announced in August.  

o Collaborating with Colorado Department of Agriculture (CDA) for a Bipartisan 

Infrastructure Law (BIL) “America the Beautiful” funding of $100,000, which 

will be used towards a wetland assessment of the Gunnison Basin.  

o A five-year funding agreement is being finalized with U.S. Forest Service with 

$20,000 earmarked for 2022. Of this, ~$8,000 will go to BIO-Logic for 

restoration consultation, ~$1,500 for material costs, and $10,000 for 



 

2 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_07.12.22 

Coordinator’s salary. An additional indirect cost rate of 10% for grant 

administration and BIO-logic support will be included.   

o Awaiting final payment of $32,941.05 on U.S. Forest funding agreement. 

o Received funding reimbursement of $174,989.25 on NFWF Phase II grant. 

Balance remaining: $ 

• Outreach:  

o Participated in Community Foundation of Gunnison Valley (CFGV) 

Environmental Sandbox on June 28th and July 19th focused on bringing various 

agencies and organizations together to discuss ongoing projects and vision in the 

Gunnison Valley.  

o Presented the Wet Meadows Program to Water Education Colorado (WECo) 

Water Fluency Workshop on July 13th focused on discussing the diversity of 

water uses in the Gunnison Basin, the federally threated Gunnison sage-grouse 

and the value of partnerships in restoration and conservation.  

• Strategic Planning & Vision 

o Attended River Network’s Stream Assessment & Management Workshop in 

Steamboat Springs on July 7th and 8th to inform process on Wet Meadow site 

prioritization matrix, standardized form templates and partner engagement.     

o Continuing to standardize data collection practices with partners in the Bureau of 

Land Management (BLM), U.S. Forest Service (USFS) and Colorado Parks & 

Wildlife (CPW) in close collaboration with The Nature Conservancy (TNC). 

o The core Wet Meadows partners will meet in October or November to pick up 

short and long-term planning for the project.  



AGENDA ITEM 9
Scientific Endeavors Update



AGENDA ITEM 9
Gunnison Basin Roundtable



AGENDA ITEM 9
STOR Committee Update



AGENDA ITEM 10
Miscellaneous Matters



����������	
�����������������
���������������
�������� !�"�#$%!�&$�'()�*���+#,�$�-��./0�1����
�2�/34�������
�����
����������5����
�1���
��	
��61�78##9 &#:9�&�;#$ "�#$%!�&$�'()#'�����������<����������� =7>��?. �=>�?.������������<�����@����� =7>��?. �A��?.�����=������<����������� =7>��?. ����?.������������<����������� ��. ��.�����>������<����B������ ��. ��.�61�������4
��C A@B�?.�D����
1��E
����4
��C �7�@�E.�F�����
�0���C A7A>�E.�G�	���H��D�
�1���
�C B�7=�E.�F
1��I:$J���KLLM#��	
�������H
���C�>��7>>>>>>>>>>>>>�N�F
1������
		���������O1�������
	C�PP�Q$##M
R$�;M#$�����M(,,�$�#'-���E���
�
	��S�5�2��

5��/��
H�2�T���	
U�
��V�	�����
������������	�������W�

?�
	�E�S�������W���������U�����5���W�	���1���7XYZ�[\]�̂]



7 <---- Month to Summarize (change this number to look at a different month)

PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO REVISION

Daily Summary for Month --> Jul

1st Fill  2nd Fill  Other Aspinall BP Accnt AU Accnt 1st Fill Contract Tot 1st fill

Day of 
Month

Silver Jack 
Reservoir & 
Juniors In 

Priority 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

TP 
Releases 
from TP 
1st Fill 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

Excess 
Released 
TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

Gun 
Tunnel 
(GT) 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat 
Inflow 

and TP 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day 
Average 
Excess 

TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day Ave. 
GT 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat Inflow 
and TP 
Inflow    
(cfs)

TP Res. 
Content 

(af)

TP - 
USGS 
outflow 

(cfs)

TP 
Compute
d Inflow 

(cfs)

1st Fill - 
Storage -

in TP 
(af)

2nd Fill -
Storage 
- in TP 

(af)

Other 
Account 
Storage 
in TP - 
Storage 

- (af)

AU 
Storag
e in TP 
- (af)

SJ Res 
Content 

(af)

SJ Inflow 
to 

Reservoir 
Storage 

(cfs)

BP - 
Storage - 
in SJ (af)

AU 
Water - 

Storage - 
in SJ (af)

BM Res 
Content 

(af)

MP Res 
Content 

(af)

CR Res 
Content 

(af)

AU 
Change 

In 
Storage 

(af)

Computed 
rel from 
CR (cfs)

AU inflow 
below TP 

& with 
AU Aug 
Rel (cfs) #REF!

UGRWC
D 

Contract 
water     
(af)

Gun. 
River 
below 
East 

Portal    
(cfs)

Total 
Gunnison 

Tunnel 
Divs (cfs)

GT Divs - 
AU inflow 
minus TP 
released 

inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
TP 

Released 
Inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
SJ 

Storage 
Inflow by 
AU Exch 

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
UGRWC

D 
Contract 
Water 

Rel    
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
Rel from 
2nd Fill 

for 
Rec/Fish  

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
1st Fill 

Credit in 
BM     
(cfs) #REF!

Remain. 
1st Fill 

Credits in 
TP and 

AU      
(af)

(1) (2) (3) (5) (6) (7) (8) (11) (14) (15) (19) (25) (30) (34) (36) (39) (43) (47) (49) (77) (100) (124) (125) (127) #REF! #REF! (128) (131) (132) (133) (134) (135) (136) (137) #REF! (140)

1 1 1     80,870 275 292     12,333 0 12,333 0  109,906 16,817  1,388    335 1,053   0 0     
2 1 1     80,835 275 265     12,249 0 12,249 0  109,890 16,809  1,392    335 1,057   0 0     
3 1 1     80,887 275 309     12,229 0 12,229 0  109,711 16,803  1,395    335 1,060   0 0     
4 1 1     80,887 275 283     12,162 0 12,162 0  109,594 16,785  1,394    335 1,059   0 0     
5 1 1     80,870 275 274     12,084 0 12,084 0  109,602 16,788  1,382    334 1,048   0 0     
6 1 1     80,922 276 310     12,000 0 12,000 0  109,703 16,791  1,368    335 1,033   0 0     
7 1 1     80,835 276 240     11,893 0 11,893 0 391,371 109,446 16,885  1,370    334 1,036   0 0     
8 1 1     80,730 261 216     11,778 0 11,778 0  109,679 16,885  1,443    404 1,039   0 0     
9 1 1     80,609 247 193     11,665 0 11,665 0  110,321 16,800  1,477    436 1,041   0 0     
10 1 1     80,452 248 177     11,562 0 11,562 0  110,289 16,809  1,483    437 1,046   0 0     
11 1 1     80,330 247 193     11,452 0 11,452 0  110,744 16,791  1,487    437 1,050   0 0     
12 1 1     80,226 246 201     11,331 0 11,331 0  111,012 16,762  1,489    437 1,052   0 0     
13 1 1     80,087 250 188     11,206 0 11,206 0  110,815 16,879  1,492    438 1,054   0 0     
14 1 1     79,913 247 167     11,126 0 11,126 0  110,823 16,873  1,438    438 1,000   0 0     
15 1 1      0              1,000    0 1,000    0     
16 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
17 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
18 1 1 0   0  
19 1 1 0   0  
20 1 1 0   0  
21 1 1 0   0  
22 1 1 0   0  
23 1 1 0   0  
24 1 1 0   0  
25 1 1 0   0  
26 1 1 0   0  
27 1 1 0   0  
28 1 1 0   0  
29 1 1 0   0  
30 1 1 0   0  
31 1 1 0   0  

Total 31 31 0 0 0 0 3,673 3,308 0 0 20,998 0 5,370 15,628 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tot (af) 0 0 0 0 7,285 6,562 0 0 41,649 0 10,651 30,998 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 1 1 0 0 0 0 79,913 0 167 0 0 0 0 11,126 0 11,126 0 391,371 109,446 16,762 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Max 1 1 0 0 0 0 80,922 276 310 0 0 0 0 12,333 0 12,333 0 391,371 111,012 16,885 0 1,492 0 0 0 438 1,060 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Annual Summary (all values in ac-ft)  Note: Reservoir content is the end of the month content 
(days) (days) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af)

Nov 30 30     58,737 4,470 4,632     1,713 300 1,713 0  110,430 15,977  20,025   19,420 604   0     
Dec 31 31     58,695 4,564 4,521     1,790 166 1,790 0 231,059 105,687 16,102  20,080   18,851 1,229   0     
Jan 31 31     58,327 4,412 4,043     1,880 90 1,880 0 236,731 104,652 16,186  19,520   18,453 1,067   0     
Feb 28 28     57,749 4,096 3,518     1,870 10 1,870 0  105,444 15,052  17,228   16,989 239   0     
Mar 31 31     57,303 4,581 4,135     1,977 107 1,977 0  108,948 16,820  32,745   24,617 8,128   0     
Apr 30 30     59,219 5,945 7,861     4,629 2,652 4,629 0  111,643 16,753  54,717   23,481 31,237   0     
May 31 31     74,021 11,966 26,989     13,147 8,806 13,147 0  110,673 16,481  107,604   48,437 59,167   0     
Jun 30 30     80,852 18,929 26,111     12,428 127 12,428 0  109,718 16,853  82,474   20,811 61,663   0     
Jul 31 31     7,285    41,649   10,651 30,998       
Aug 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Sep 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Oct 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Total 365 365 0 0 0 0 66,247 81,810 12,257 0 396,042 0 201,710 194,332 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 28 28 0 0 0 0 57,303 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,790 0 1,790 0 231,059 104,652 15,052 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Max 31 31 0 0 0 0 80,852 18,929 26,989 0 0 0 0 13,147 8,806 13,147 0 236,731 111,643 16,853 0 107,604 0 0 48,437 61,663 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Type of Water Diverted into Tunnel

TO

Taylor Park Reservoir Aspinall Unit GUNNISON TUNNEL ALLOCATION
River Call Average Flow Reservoir

Silver Jack Reservoir
Reservoir Reservoir Contents Total Aspinall Unit Inflow Streamflow and Divs



























































AGENDA ITEM 11
Citizens Comments



AGENDA ITEM 12
Future Meetings



FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENTS

 TLUG Meeting - July 25, 2022, 9:00 AM
 Executive Committee Meeting - July 27, 2022, 11:00AM
 Watershed Mgt. Planning Committee Meeting - August 10, 1:30PM
 Colorado Water Congress Summer Conference - August 23-25, 2022
 UGRWCD Board Meeting - August 29, 2022, 5:30PM
 Labor Day Holiday - Offices Closed - September 5, 2022
 UGRWCD Board Meeting - September 26, 2022



AGENDA ITEM 13
Summary of Action Items



AGENDA ITEM 14
Adjournment



Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org 

UPPER GUNNISON RIVER WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS- AGENDA 

REGULAR SEMI-ANNUAL MEETING-July 25, 2022 

25, 2022

8:05 p.m. 1. Call to Order

8:07 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval

8:10 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed for

discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board member or citizen. 

• Approval of January 24, 2022 Minutes

• Consideration of Expenses

• Budget Report

8:15 p.m. 4. Meridian Lake Reservoir Update

8:25 p.m. 5. Miscellaneous Matters

8:30 p.m. 6. Citizen Comments

8:35 p.m. 7. Adjournment

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at 

any time.  All times are approximate.  Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are 

recorded, and action can be taken on any item. The Board may address individual agenda items at 

any time or in any order to accommodate the needs of the Board and the audience. Persons with 

special needs due to a disability are requested to call the District at (970) 641-6065 at least 24 hours 

prior to the meeting.   

http://www.ugrwcd.org/


WAE AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items



 

10 
 

 

UPPER GUNNISON RIVER WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR SEMI-ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES 

January 24, 2022 

 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Activity Enterprise conducted a 

semi-annual meeting on Monday, January 24, 2022 at 7:20 p.m. in the District offices, 210 West 

Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO, 81230. 

 

Board members present: Sara Bergstrom, Rosemary Carroll (via Zoom), Joellen Fonken (via 

Zoom), Rebie Hazard (via Zoom), Stacy McPhail, Julie Nania (via Zoom), Bill Nesbitt, John 

Perusek, Michelle Pierce, Don Sabrowski and Andy Spann (via Zoom).   

 

Others present: 

Cheryl Cwelich, UGRWCD Watershed Programs Coordinator 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

Sue Uerling, UGRWCD Administrative Assistant/Communications Support Specialist 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 7:20 p.m.   
 

2.      AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt moved and Director Stacy McPhail seconded approval of the agenda.  

The motion carried.   

 

3.      CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:   

 

President Michelle Pierce asked if there were any items to be removed for discussion from the 

consent agenda.  None were requested. 

 

Director Sara Bergman moved and Director Bill Nesbitt seconded approval of the consent 

agenda items, which included Resolution 2022-1 to Set Posting Place.  The motion carried. 

 

4. MERIDIAN LAKE RESERVOIR UPDATE:   

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez reported that she met with the dam inspector in the fall and he 

had no major concerns.  She said there is a small seep at the outlet works that has not grown over 

the years and that she will continue monitor it.  There are some bank erosion issues that could be 



 

11 
 

addressed but that aren’t in any way urgent or critical.  She recommended that bank stabilization 

be presented to the Long Lane Working Group.   

 

Water Resource Specialist Beverly Richards reported that 640 base units have been sold leaving 

326 available. The initial cost is $3,500 per base unit and the annual administrative fee is $55.00 

per base unit. 

 

5.      2022 BUDGET ADOPTION:  

 

President Michelle Pierce referred to the draft budget included in the Board packet and asked if 

there were any questions or concerns.  None were raised. 

 

Director Stacy McPhail moved and Director Sara Bergman seconded adoption of the 2022 

WAE budget.   

 

6.      CITIZEN COMMENTS:  

 

There were no citizens present for comments. 

 

7.      MISCELLANEOUS MATTER:  

 

None were brought forward. 

 

8.      SUMMARY OF ACTION ITEMS:  

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez will follow-up on CD rates at area banks. 

 

9.      ADJOURMENT:   

 

President Michelle Pierce adjourned the Water Activity Enterprise meeting at 7:25 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,    APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________   _________________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary    Michelle Pierce, President 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







WAE AGENDA ITEM 4
Meridian Lake Reservoir Update



WAE AGENDA ITEM 5
Miscellaneous Matters



WAE AGENDA ITEM 6
Citizen Comments



WAE AGENDA ITEM 7
Adjournment


	Agenda - July 25, 2022
	Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of June 27, 2022 Minutes
	Monthly Budget Summary
	Consideration of Expenses

	Agenda Item 4 - Legal and Legislative Matters
	Agenda Item 5 - 2023 Budget Officer Appointment
	Agenda Item 6 - Executive Session
	Agenda Item 7 - BREAK
	Agenda Item 8 - Basin Water Supply Report
	Agenda Item 9 - General Manager, Committee and Staff Updates
	Treasurer's Report
	2021 Draft Audit - ACTION

	General Manager's Update
	Taylor Local User's Group Update
	July 8, 2022 Meeting Summary

	Watershed Management Planning Committee Update
	July 14, 2022 Meeting Summary

	Grant Committee Update
	Wet Meadows Program Update
	Scientific Endeavors
	Gunnison Basin Roundtable
	STOR Committee Update

	Agenda Item 10 - Miscellaneous Matters
	Colorado Water Congress - More Attendees?
	Gunnison Energy Production Report - Solar Panels
	Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet
	Newspaper Articles, Water News and Thank Yous

	Agenda Item 11 - Citizens Comments
	Agenda Item 12 - Future Meetings
	Agenda Item 13 - Summary of Meeting Action Items
	Agenda Item 14 - Adjournment
	WATER ACTIVITY ENTERPRISE - July 25, 2022
	Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of Juanuary 24, 2022 Minutes
	Budget Report
	Consideration of Expenses

	Agenda Item 4 - Meridian Lake Reservoir Update
	Agenda Item 5 - Miscellaneous Matters
	Agenda Item 6 - Citizen Comments
	WAE Adjournment
	GM Report_Final.pdf
	General Manager Report_July 25, 2022_Final.pdf
	MesoNet in Eastern US.pdf
	MesoNet in Western US.pdf




